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Episode 1

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Monday December 9, 2019
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Mary Nighy
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil McK-
inven), John Gordon Sinclair (Drew Cubbin), Martin Compston (Daniel
MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil MacAfee)

Guest Stars: Neve McIntosh (Julie Hedges), Craig McDonald-Kelly (Friendly Guy),
Mhairi Stuart (Radio Newsreader), Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), Morayo
Akandé (DC Trina Adebayo), Steven Miller (Andy Jarvis), John Clyde
(Shuggie Brook), Kieran Brown (Barman), Anna Leong Brophy (Louise
Chiu Jones), Carly Anderson (Marie Monroe), Val McDermid (MOOC
News Presenter), Jamie Marie Leary (Skye Alessi), Ciaran Alexan-
der Stewart (Gregg Davidson), Laurie Brett (Izzy Alessi), Phil McKee
(Jimmy Levin), David Monteath ((voice)), Rob Day (Howie), Bhav Joshi
(PC Naz)

Summary: A fatal fire in a nightclub proves an ominous omen for Emma’s return
to Dundee. Her mother’s unsolved murder comes into sharp focus,
forcing Emma to turn to her new boss, Sarah, for support.

At the beginning of the episode, Emma
Hedges calls Aunt Julie and lets them
know she has made it to Scotland. Mo-
ments later, she gets stuck in traffic and
the driver in front of her suspects some-
one is trying to leap from the nearby
bridge. During the wait, Emma receives
a call from her aunt telling her not to put
diesel in her car. Finally, the traffic gets
moving again and Emma goes on her way.
While driving along, Emma hears a news
report about a fire killing several people
at the Secrets nightclub. Then, we jump

over to the University of Tayside where Professor Sarah Gordon teaches a class.
After the class ends, Sarah learns about the fire at Secrets. She speaks with Kathy about

the fire and the investigation into that fire. After that, Sarah tells her colleague that the new
lab technician Emma is going to be arriving today. Sarah tells Kathy that they can travel to
the strategy meeting together but Kathy isn’t going. She is headed straight to the scene. Kathy
checks her mail and finds a postcard from Australia. The sender says that they’re going to pay
her a visit. Sarah attends the meeting and learns that a human body was found in the office and
another in the kitchen.

The group sees pictures of two members of staff who have not been accounted for yet. Emma
makes it to her room. Surprisingly, there is a picture of a dead woman hanging on the wall. A
firefighter tells the group about the fire before Sarah gives them a game plan. After the meeting
ends, Sarah and the others head to Secrets to scour through the scene. Sarah finds a burnt
toaster and potato chip packages. Moments later, Neil is alerted to another body. Next, Emma
heads to the university. She is introduced to Louise who she’ll be working with. Louise and Emma
jump right in immediately.
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Emma is told about an online course for SIFA and encouraged to check it out. After that,
Emma heads outside and runs into Sarah and Kathy. Emma goes to a spot where she used to
spend time as a child. She has a flashback of dancing around with her friend and her mother.
The camera zooms in on her anchor tattoo. That night, Emma cannot sleep so she accesses the
SIFA’s online training course, MOOC. The video features Sarah talking about the university and
the training course which will focus on a fictional case. Emma continues watching and realizes
that the fictional case seems familiar. She calls her aunt and tells her that MOOC is using her
mother’s story.

Emma is told to go to sleep and she does. In the morning, Laura begins working on the
toaster evidence collected from the scene and Emma continues watching the MOOC training
videos. It appears that someone stuffed cardboard into the toaster. Emma goes to the university
and confronts Sarah about using her mother’s case for MOOC. Sarah denies it and says that
they invented a crime. Sarah apologizes and says that Emma’s mother is not the body in the
MOOC. The investigation into the fire continues. Sarah calls Torrance and suggests she would’ve
been aware of the similarities between Marie Monroe’s case and the MOOC murder.

Torrance says that they’ll need to remove all similarities from MOOC so they do not get sued.
After that, Emma runs into her old friend Skye. Torrance and the others work to identify the
bodies. Emma tells Skye about her new position. Skye tells her friend that her mother would love
to see it and Emma confesses she hasn’t visited her father yet. Sarah tells the others her theory
as to how the fire started. They go outside and Sarah demonstrates how the toaster would catch
fire on its side and with cardboard stuck in it. That night, Emma goes to a club where her father
is performing. Then, they go back home and speak about the death of Emma’s mother.

Emma wants to know who killed her mother but her father doesn’t have the answer. Emma
thinks she has reached the age where she needs to know. She goes to sleep on her father’s
shoulder so he takes her to bed. In the middle of the night, Emma is awoken by someone banging
on the door. She yells through the door and the person on the other side wants something her
father has. When that person leaves, Emma searches through her dad’s belongings. She snaps
a picture of her father and mother in bed together.

The following day, Neil tells Sarah that the cardboard led them to a woman who remembers
putting the package in the recycling bin. The manager of Secrets lived nearby. Unfortunately, the
manager jumped off a bridge and killed himself so they cannot speak with him. Torrance gets a
visit from a friend. She shuts the door and speaks to him about sleeping with someone. It sounds
like she barely knew the individual but they’re going to be visiting her. The friend doesn’t seem
to care as long as the sex was good. Next, Sarah learns that there is no match for the body found
in the kitchen. She believes he could’ve been the one who started the fire.

Kathy asks Sarah where they’re at with Marie Monroe. Kathy suggests they apply for the data
protection thing and hope it doesn’t take forever. She tells Sarah not to beat herself up over a
mistake cause it will lead to another. Emma tries to get in touch with her father before meeting
with Skye and her mother at the hospital. They speak about smoking before the conversation
turns to Marie Monroe. The mother says something about the bones being cut up. Emma calls
her aunt and asks why nobody told her about the dismemberment. Julie says that her sister
wasn’t cut up. Later, Emma meets with Jimmy and they begin chatting about Marie’s death.

Jimmy admits that he and Julie kept things from Emma. However, he says that Marie was
not dismembered. Emma wants to know what her mother suffered. He says that the police told
him nothing and they failed them. Jimmy says Marie cut her hair off when Emma was around
six. That night, Emma goes through pictures of her mother. In the morning, she rushes to the
University to speak with Sarah about her mother’s murder. Sarah doesn’t believe she would be
the right one to talk to. Emma shows her the picture of her mom and dad. She explains that
they weren’t together when the photo was taken. She was with her step-dad at the time. Emma
believes that might have something to do with the murder.
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Episode 2

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Tuesday December 10, 2019
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Mary Nighy
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil McK-
inven), John Gordon Sinclair (Drew Cubbin), Martin Compston (Daniel
MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil MacAfee)

Guest Stars: Jamie Marie Leary (Skye Alessi), Anna Leong Brophy (Louise Chiu
Jones), Morayo Akandé (DC Trina Adebayo), Frances Grey (DCI
Catherine Attwood), Carly Anderson (Marie Monroe), Ross William Wild
(Milo), Hiftu Quasem (Saffi), Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), Bhav Joshi
(PC Naz Khara), Laurie Brett (Izzy Alessi), Ciaran Alexander Stewart
(Gregg Davidson), Joana Borja (Pia Salvador), David Monteath ((voice)),
Oluseun Adeyemi (Passerby), Craig Thomas Lambert (Police Sergeant),
Neve McIntosh (Julie Hedges), Andrew Steel (Man on Bench)

Summary: Glad of McKinven’s help, Emma soon feels overwhelmed by the police
interest and wonders what she’s started.

At the beginning of the episode, Emma
Hedges moves in with her friend Skye.
Emma wants to know if Skye’s mother
sees her dad. Skye says that she doesn’t
see him at all as far as she knows. Kathy
Torrance and Sarah Gordon speak about
the picture Emma showed Sarah. Kathy
says the picture shows Emma’s parents
who weren’t together in bed after sex. She
wonders why someone would take a pic-
ture after something like that. She won-
ders if Marie Monroe was dismembered.

After that, Sarah heads inside to talk
with Emma about their latest problem. People are taking drugs they know nothing about and it
is killing people. She tells Emma that Neil should be calling her soon. Trina makes sure Neil is
ready before they attend a strategy meeting together. It is believed that two of the victims died
due to the fire. The two were locked in the office and Trina explains they were likely having an
affair. Ian Harry is identified as the other man who died in the fire. However, he died before the
fire and was killed by strangulation. CCTV footage shows Shuggie Brock letting Ian in through
the kitchen entry.

Neil contacts Sarah and tells her to send him copies of the MOOC modules. If she does, he’ll
suggest what changes need to be made. That night, Emma and Skyke head out to the club. They
get drunk and take pills before Emma spends the night with a man. In the morning, she goes
back to the club because she forgot her purse. She isn’t allowed in but Daniel arrives and agrees
to help. Once Emma has her belongings, she prepares to leave. Daniel invites her to an upcoming
event before they get into an argument. Emma leaves in a hurry, stops near a trashcan, and takes
a morning after pill.

The bag falls out of the trashcan and floats along the street. Emma rushes back home and
charges her phone while speaking with Skye about the previous night. Skye apologizes and
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blames the medication for her mother saying Marie Monroe was dismembered. Kathy Torrance
teaches a class. While Emma is in the shower, Skye finds that she is using the photo of her
parents on her cellphone. Surprisingly, they find that the bed in the picture is the bed in the
house. The parents were having sex in the house owned by Skye’s mother. Skye promises to ask
her mother about it. Neil calls Emma seconds later. The class with Torrance continues.

She says that the evidence only tells them that the blade of the saw came in contact with the
bone three times. Emma meets with Neil and speaks with him about Marie’s death. Neil explains
that he followed the case but he wasn’t in control. During their conversation, Emma shows Neil
the photograph of her parents in bed. She also tells him about the day of her mother’s death.
Neil says Emma may know the person who killed her mother but she may not realize it. Neil tells
her to be very careful about what she says from here on out. Sarah meets up with Emma outside
of the institute to make sure Neil took care of her. After that, we learn that DNA on Shuggie’s belt
is consistent with it being used as a ligature.

It is believed that Shuggie started the fire in hopes of covering up the murder. The team is told
to look for a different story. Neil wants them to look at problems with the buildings too. Next,
Emma learns that Sarah asked for a portion of all drugs seized by the police so they can test
them. Emma and Louise begin testing the drugs immediately. Emma seems particularly excited
about it. The drugs she used last night are part of the testing. During a break, Emma calls Skye
to ask about her mother. Skye says her mother was sleep so she was never able to see her.
However, we see that Izzy is awake and with her daughter during the call.

After that, Emma goes out with Daniel. Emma says she was rude and she likes Daniel’s nose.
They share a drink while Sarah tells the others that the MOOC has been a big success. She
explains that they’ll need to change some of the modules because they’re a little too close to
reality. Daniel tells Emma that he needed to do a good deed to make up for a bad one. He says he
was stupid and people suffered as a result. Emma learns that the police just spoke with Daniel
regarding what his company did.

The authorities want to know if Daniel’s company did something that could have started the
fire. A video is taken of Sarah walking up a set of stairs. A young girl arrives looking for Torrance.
Emma tells Daniel that she got herself into trouble with anxiety and depression when she was
in school. She got on anti-depressants and sorted things out. Daniel takes Emma up to the hill.
Torrance confronts her friend Pia outside and goes off on her. She sends her away in a hurry so
the coworkers will not suspect anything. Daniel and Emma go up the hill where her mother was
and drink alcohol. Emma imagines seeing her mother walking through the weeds nearby.

The couple cuddle and Daniel says they’re standing on an extinct volcano. When Kathy re-
turns home, she changes her attitude and begins calling local motels in hopes of getting in touch
with her friend Salvador. Neil calls Sarah and tells her that they should look out for Emma be-
cause she knows something that was never disclosed. Sarah believes it is the dismemberment.
Emma and Daniel go back to his place. Daniel freaks out when he realizes he is out of coffee.
Then, he notices Emma’s tattoo and kisses it. When Daniel discloses his tattoo, Emma kisses it.
They have sex before waking up and chatting about Emma’s studies.

Emma gets a text from Julie telling her that her apology has been accepted. Then, her father
calls. He wants to talk about the photo.
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Episode 3

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Monday December 16, 2019
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Mary Nighy
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil McK-
inven), John Gordon Sinclair (Drew Cubbin), Martin Compston (Daniel
MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil MacAfee)

Guest Stars: Jamie Marie Leary (Skye Alessi), Frances Grey (DCI Catherine
Attwood), Morayo Akandé (DC Trina Adebayo), Jack Tarlton (Fiscal
John), Peter Forbes (Superintendent Gavin Blair), Anna Leong Brophy
(Louise Chiu Jones), Carly Anderson (Marie Monroe), Ciaran Alexander
Stewart (Gregg Davidson), Duncan Pow (Patrick Monk), Lynn Edmon-
stone (Clerk), Phil McKee (Jimmy Levin), Neve McIntosh (Julie Hedges),
Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), Joana Borja (Pia Salvador), Laurie Brett
(Izzy Alessi), David Monteath ((voice))

Summary: McKinven’s initial enquiries ruffle feathers and a furious Julie chides
Emma for dragging up the past. When Skye threatens Emma with a
knife, it’s clear that someone’s hiding something.

At the beginning of the episode, Emma
and Daniel leave his apartment hold-
ing hands. Emma eventually makes her
way back to Skye’s place. Emma tells
her friend about Daniel and her feelings
for him. Then, the conversation turns
to Emma’s father Drew and the picture.
Emma wonders how her father knew she
had seen it. Emma asks her friend if she
told her mom but Skye denies it. After
that, we attend a strategy meeting with
Trina, Neil, and the others. It is asked
if there is a connection between Shuggie
killing Howie and the fire that killed the

other two people.
There is no connection. It is believed that Brock killed Howie to get out of debt. He locked the

door and set the fire to hide the murder. Once the found out the other two were dead, he killed
himself by jumping from a bridge. Neil speaks with his boss about the photo of Emma’s parents.
The boss says that they need to follow up on the dismemberment statement and not the picture.
Emma goes to work and joins Louise. They continue testing the drugs. Sarah Gordon checks
on in them briefly. She tells them that she won’t be around this afternoon because she has to
discuss the fire report.

Next, Sarah sits down with Kathy and work on the MOOC stuff. Since the body was buried
for a lengthy period of time, they wonder how much the others had to work with. Emma leaves
work and meets with her father to talk about the picture. He isn’t sure why she wouldn’t ask him
about it. She tells him about the strange man who visited his house and banged on the door. Dad
explains that he went to visit his girlfriend that night because she was feeling a big jealous. Drew
admits that they had sex together and Izzy took the photograph. They never completely stopped
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wanting to have sex so they kept doing it. Emma begins burning a candle on the table while the
conversation continues.

Drew explains he was on the rig when Marie was killed meaning he couldn’t be responsible.
Emma wants to know who told him about the photo. He doesn’t answer and he wants her to drop
it. Drew asks Emma not to tell Jimmy. She says she hasn’t but she has told the police. Drew
believes she’ll come to regret that. Later, Emma gets a call from Neil but she doesn’t answer it.
Daniel meets up with her seconds later. They get into Daniel’s car and start talking about love.
Moments later, Daniel gets a call from his father. They chat about the fire and protecting their
construction business. Patrick is going to meet with them at 4 o’clock.

After the call ends, Daniel and Emma chat about the nightclub Secrets. Daniel was the fore-
man on the job so detectives will want to speak with him. Neil follows up on the evidence before
calling Kathy. Trina enters and tells him that someone is waiting for him at the front desk. The
call ends and Neil meets with Drew. Emma returns to work late and Louise doesn’t care. Emma
makes up for it by offering to do the cleaning up tonight so Louise can leave early. Drew gives
Neil the photograph. He also tells him about the affair and Marie’s reason for having one. Drew
denies that Izzy ever joined in with them. Before the meeting ends, Neil asks if they can get this
done in statement form and take a DNA sample from Drew.

Drew doesn’t hesitate to say okay. After that, Kathy prepares to be filmed. The photographer
asks her about Pia and the postcard sender but Kathy pretends she doesn’t know what he is
talking about. Neil calls her and asks for her opinion about Marie’s case. They agree to chat
about it later. Sarah joins the meeting about the fire report and learns about the victims’ families
and their opinions about the case. Some want to sue. Most of the blame is shifting to Daniel’s
construction company. They want to prosecute Daniel and his father for the fire. During this
time, Daniel and his dad speak with a lawyer about their situation.

When Sarah returns to work, Kathy tells her that Marie’s remains were examined by a trainee
pathologist. Some of the bones were never removed and they might’ve missed more. Daniel sits
outside of the Secret nightclub. He receives a voicemail learning he is going to be charged with
culpable homicide. Then, he speaks with Emma. Daniel tells her that he is going to go home.
Next, Jimmy gets a visit from Trina and Neil. They speak about the murder and Jimmy reveals
he never saw the bones after they were discovered. He doesn’t remember anyone mentioning
dismemberment until Emma did. He says she hasn’t seen Izzy in many years and she looked like
a street junkie when he saw her. Jimmy claims Izzy was a bad influence on Marie.

Neil tells Jimmy that Drew says he slept with Marie while they were together but Neil doesn’t
believe it. He has to accept it when he is shown the picture. Julie calls Emma. Julie goes nuts
about Emma speaking with the police and causing them to bring the case back up. After that,
Daniel and his dad, Philip, go to court for their initial hearing. After it concludes, they’re allowed
to leave. Patrick tells them that he cannot work for both of them. He tells them not to discuss the
case and that they could end up in jail. Moments later, Neil and Trina visit Julie. She tells them
that Marie was drunk so anything could’ve happened with anyone.

She also thought Marie might’ve run away until the body was found. Julie agreed to take
Emma after that. Meanwhile, Emma tells Louise about the results from the drug testing. Julie
tells Neil that she believes they would’ve found the answers already if they were any out there.
She doesn’t believe Jimmy was involved although they argued. He wouldn’t hurt a fly. She says
it couldn’t be Drew either because he was out on the rig. She only found out about the affair and
she blames Drew for that. When Neil and Trina leaves, he tells her that they need to speak with
Jimmy about that argument. Kathy tells Sarah about the evidence she has been asked to look
over for Neil.

She says it is depressingly bad. Kathy finds out where Pia is so she rushes over right away.
She apologizes to her and asks if they can meet up that night. Pia says no since she has found
other people to hang out with. Emma tells Daniel he is a good person before offering to introduce
him to Skye. They go inside and Skye confronts them with a knife. She suspects that they’ve
come for the bed. Emma is forced to get her belongings and leave. Once they leave, Trina takes
a DNA sample from Izzy. She tells them how difficult it was to lose Marie before looking at the
photograph. Neil asks her about the dismemberment statement but Izzy pretends she doesn’t
remember anything about it.

Emma cries as she drives away with Daniel. She tells him that Skye was her best friend. She
defends her friend and says she is scared of what she might find out about her mother. Emma
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tells him that the tattoo on her hand is for her mother. Daniel asks about the bed and learns it is
connected to Emma’s father. Neither understands what is going on. Emma moves in with Daniel
for the time being. She shows him the picture of the bed. Then, she explains that Skye lied about
speaking to her mother about the bed. This convinces Daniel that it might have evidence on it.
Daniel encourages Emma to call the police before they can destroy the bed. He says he’ll back
her up.
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Episode 4

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Tuesday December 17, 2019
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Mary Nighy
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil McK-
inven), John Gordon Sinclair (Drew Cubbin), Martin Compston (Daniel
MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil MacAfee)

Guest Stars: Joana Borja (Pia Salvador), Peter Forbes (Superintendent Gavin Blair),
Morayo Akandé (DC Trina Adebayo), Anna Leong Brophy (Louise Chiu
Jones), Laurie Brett (Izzy Alessi), Jamie Marie Leary (Skye Alessi),
Janey Godley (Clare Tindall), Phil McKee (Jimmy Levin), Louise Mont-
gomery (Mrs. Nardoni), Ian Pirie (Vincent Keir), Carly Anderson (Marie
Monroe), Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), David Monteath ((voice)), Rachel
Logan (Muriel Quirk), Neve McIntosh (Julie Hedges)

Summary: Daniel’s facing a culpable homicide charge for the Secrets fire and
wants to protect Phil’s reputation. But when Emma meets Phil for the
first time, her instinct tells her to be wary of him.

At the beginning of the episode, Emma
Hedges wakes up next to Daniel while
Kathy is in bed with Pia. Emma speaks
to her boyfriend about recognizing peo-
ple’s faces despite how much their body
changes. Neil speaks to his coworker
about the bed tip. When Kathy drops Pia
off, she makes her promise that she’ll re-
turn after touring Scotland. She leaves
her hat to prove it. After that, Sarah Gor-
don speaks with Kathy about the pills
that killed those girls. Sarah speaks with
Emma and Louise about the drug tests.

They chat about PMA and PMMA.
Once Louise steps away, Sarah asks Emma about working with Neil and handing information
over. Emma feels she did the right thing now. Neil and Trina meet with Izzy to ask her permission
to take the bed. They’re going to take it either way but Izzy doesn’t want them to have it. Neil tells
Izzy she is the last person to see Marie alive. Izzy says Marie texted her to tell her she was going
home. Izzy is worried because the bed has a lot of coke on it.

Once they step outside, Neil and Trina wonder if Izzy is faking it. They’re not sure if Izzy could
be involved in the murder. The study about PMMA and MDMA continues with Sarah, Emma, and
Louise. She says they need to extract the drug’s impurities to find out its recipe. That could help
the police find out who made the drugs. Meanwhile, the bed is checked with a black light and
blood is found on the headboard. It is taken out of the building by police as Skye watches from a
window. Emma calls Neil to confirm he got the headboard. He refuses to tell her what tests will
be performed on it.

After that, the testing continues on the drugs. After the lecture ends, Emma calls Skye and
asks her to meet. They meet up seconds later and Emma tells her friend not to do any pills
because there are some really bad ones out there. Emma wants them to stay friends but Skye
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is not happy with her squealing on them. She says her mom is her hero and she doesn’t believe
she could be in the murder. Skye doesn’t seem interested in being friends. Daniel meets with
a lawyer and speaks about the possible outcomes of the trial. Daniel is interested in doing the
right thing for the victims of the fire but that could cost him. He wants to protect his father’s
reputation too.

He meets up with Emma and tells her about the lawyer. Clients are starting to go elsewhere
now that the charges have hit the news. Emma tries to reassure him by telling him that Sarah
wrote the report so it will be fair and balanced. Next, Jimmy Levin is interviewed by detectives.
They want to know about his argument with Marie. He admits there was a lot of suspicion on
him because he was Marie’s husband. He goes on to tell them about the argument. He also talks
about Marie’s dancing and men staring at her. Daniel is harassed by the victim’s families outside
of his place of business. He says nothing and gets into his vehicle.

Trina tells Neil about a coke smuggling ring at the rig. There is a ran chance that Drew was
involved. Emma goes back to Daniel’s place and creates a makeshift crime scene following the
MOOC program. When Daniel returns home, he doesn’t like it. Emma apologizes and cleans it
up immediately. They leave moments later to meet with Daniel’s father. One of the men involved
in the smuggling, Vincent, is interviewed by Trina. He tells them that there is not much to say.
He says men will find something to do for fun out there and that nothing was proven. Drew says
the same when interviewed. Drew says Vincent is always volatile.

Daniel and Emma go out to dinner with Philip who seems very interested in Emma and her
line of work. He wants to know more about her opinions regarding drugs. Philip asks Daniel how
they met in private. Emma interrupts their conversation. Then, she has a nightmare of digging up
her mother who smiles at her. Emma tells Daniel about her nightmare. The following day, Emma
goes to her mother’s grave. Sarah meets up with Neil and they chat about protecting Emma.

Sarah says they can be her secret parents. Daniel’s lawyer visits and tells him that Phil is
going to blame everything on him. She says they can try to keep his name off of the indictment
but he’ll need to give evidence against his dad. Daniel isn’t willing to do that and he doesn’t
believe his father has flipped. Daniel speaks with Philip and questions him about it. Philip says
he tried to get his name off the indictment but he didn’t flip. He wants Daniel to do the same.
Philip is adamant that Shuggie was responsible for everything and he took his life to make up for
it. Neil tells Trina that semen found on the headboard belonged to five different men.

There is only one DNA and that is for Drew. There is no blood either. Trina has been working
on the Drew and Vincent angle. She also confirmed that Izzy isn’t lying about her health. At
work, Emma and Sarah learn a lot more about the drugs. Daniel meets with his lawyer, Claire,
and tells her that he won’t plead guilty to anything. When Emma leaves work, Kathy speaks
with her about the MOOC. She found out what Emma’s username was and she thinks she asks
excellent questions. Jimmy is there waiting when the conversation ends. Emma partially gets
into the vehicle. Jimmy wonders what Drew has been hiding from them. Jimmy wants to know
who was responsible for killing Marie and he wants them punished.

He offers help. Sarah checks on Kathy and finds Pia’s hat. They speak about Emma and giving
her support. Kathy says Emma is over her mother being in the MOOC and Sarah should be too.
Emma goes home and Philip enters his son’s apartment moments later. Philip asks how Emma
met Daniel. Then, he says sorry for Emm’s mother. He remembers it being in the news and Emma
doesn’t want to talk about it. She freaks out and runs out onto the balcony and Daniel tries to
get through the door. As the episode ends, Emma is shown hanging over the ledge.
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Episode 5

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Monday December 23, 2019
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Mary Nighy
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil McK-
inven), John Gordon Sinclair (Drew Cubbin), Martin Compston (Daniel
MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil MacAfee)

Guest Stars: Richard Hansell (Steven), Neil McKinven (PC Sandy), Andrea Hart (Ja-
nine Muir), Morayo Akandé (DC Trina Adebayo), Anna Leong Brophy
(Louise Chiu Jones), Laurie Brett (Izzy Alessi), Stella Gonet (Aileen
MacAfee), Peter Forbes (Superintendent Gavin Blair), Joana Borja (Pia
Salvador), Jack Tarlton (Fiscal John), Neve McIntosh (Julie Hedges),
David Monteath ((voice)), Carly Anderson (Marie Monroe), Ian Pirie
(Vincent Keir)

Summary: Emma’s accusation against Phil drives a wedge between her and
Daniel. McKinven urges Emma to stop sleuthing, as he becomes cer-
tain that the person who killed her mother is known to her.

As the episode starts, Daniel makes it
back to his apartment building in time
to see Emma hanging from the ledge.
A neighbor notices Emma hanging there
so he tries to help. The neighbor saves
Emma as Daniel and Philip make it to
his door. The neighbor asks Emma if she
feels safe with these two men and she
says no. Daniel and Vincent leave to-
gether while Daniel asks his father what
happened. After that, Emma, Daniel, and
Philip are interviewed by police. Emma
says she felt threatened by Philip but
Daniel doesn’t believe that.

Once the interviews stop, Emma finds
out that Philip has been charged with breaching the peace. She didn’t want him charged but
it is too late now. Daniel meets with her outside and gives her his coat. He seems upset and
confused by Emma’s actions. She admits it had something to do with Philip mentioning her
mother’s death. Kathy speaks with Neil about the work done on Marie’s case. She says it was
pretty shoddy so they’re interested in doing it again. Back at home, Emma tells Daniel she feels
stupid about her behavior.

Daniel gets a call from his father who tells him they do not expect a prosecution. They believe
that it’ll all come to nothing. Emma and Daniel sleep together that night. Emma has a nightmare
about meeting Philip for the first time. The following day, Kathy and Neil go to the location where
Marie’s body was discovered. They agree to test the soil so they can find the exact spot before
Kathy calls Pia and asks her to return. Before Emma leaves, she puts a thank you note under
the neighbor’s door. Then, he heads to work and speakers with Janine Muir. Emma wants to talk
to Neil but she lost her phone and can’t get in touch with him.

They chat a bit before Neil arrives and takes Emma to a private room. She tells him that Philip
recognized her mother from her face. She suspects Philip knows something about her mother’s
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death but Neil is a bit apprehensive. Emma is asked if she would leave Dundee for a while but
she isn’t going to do that. When Neil leaves, he meets with Sarah to tell her about Emma’s
relationship with Daniel. They’re worried that it might jeopardize the Secrets case. Sarah goes to
Emma and asks her about it. Emma tells her she didn’t know about Daniel having anything to
do with the fire until later. Sarah seems to believe Daniel is using their relationship to protect
himself.

Emma loses her temper and Sarah puts her in her place. Then, she whines about Sarah
not caring how she feels. Emma’s partner enters but leaves a short time later. Trina tells Neil
they can get the DNA because it is custody DNA. Louise asks Emma why Sarah is mad at her
while Sarah tells Kathy about the conversation. Neil and Trina go over the evidence in Marie’s
case. They speak about Jimmy mentioning Marie dancing on cruise ships. This convinced them
that Jimmy was jealous. Neil wonders if Daniel and Philip are playing Emma. The following day,
Neil speaks with Daniel about the Emma and Philip problem. Neil vapes and spots Philip as he
returns to the construction company.

Then, they chat about Daniel being unable to give investigators the paperwork for the Secrets
job. Philip says they do not want them poking about in the paperwork. Neil and Trina find out
that Philip’s DNA is on the headboard. They go to Izzy to ask her about Philip. She says she had a
thing with Philip but it is history now. She says Philip might’ve crossed Marie at times. Izzy does
know Vincent and she doesn’t like him. She says he is an evil drug dealer. Meanwhile, Emma
apologizes to Sarah and admits she knows why she was angry with her. Emma is told she’ll be
gone if she slips up like that again. Then, Sarah lets Louise know that the police are going to be
dropping off a pack of important drugs.

Emma immediately suspects they’re the drugs that have been killing people. Neil visits Philip’s
ex-wife who admits Phil liked to have rough sex and she should have left him earlier. She checks
her book and finds out when Phil visited her. She agrees to let Neil hang onto her book. Emma
returns to Daniel’s house and makes up with him. Neil tells Sarah that something is not right
with Emma and her new friends. He feels that Daniel and Emma legitimately like one another.
Meanwhile, Emma tells Daniel she thinks it is strange that he changed his mind about doing the
right thing and she blames Philip. They spar back and forth before Daniel tells her to shut up.

Emma leaves and goes to her father’s house because she wants to get stoned. Drew lets her
in and they get stoned together. Drew encourages her not to buy anything from the dark web
before saying Marie liked to smoke and snort. Eventually, Drew says he has something he needs
to tell her. He says he is going to have a baby and Emma finds that funny. Neil tries to find Phil
Macafee in the computer system but can’t find anything. He can’t find anything for the last name
Macafee either and that is a bit unbelievable. In the morning, it appears that Emma almost late
for work again. She teams up with Louise to test the deadly drugs.

Later, Pia joins Kathy and Neil. They discuss their decision to investigate Philip and search
the discovery site once again. Emma tells Sarah about the findings from the drug testing. Then,
Emma finds out that they’re going to officially reopen the Marie case. To do that, Emma will have
to step away from SIFA until it concludes. Julie meets up with her outside and finds out that she
no longer has a job. Julie tries to take her home but Emma isn’t ready to go yet. Julie admits she
should’ve given Emma more room. Julie intends to return home that night. They speak about
the last name Hedges. Philip visits Izzy in the hospital and she seems frightened to see him.

He mentions Skye and Emma. Philip shuts the curtain and tells Izzy how painful it can be to
bring up the past.
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Episode 6

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Tuesday December 24, 2019
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Mary Nighy
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil McK-
inven), John Gordon Sinclair (Drew Cubbin), Martin Compston (Daniel
MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil MacAfee)

Guest Stars: Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), Anna Leong Brophy (Louise Chiu Jones),
Stella Gonet (Aileen MacAfee), Joana Borja (Pia Salvador), Morayo
Akandé (DC Trina Adebayo), Jamie Marie Leary (Skye Alessi), Lau-
rie Brett (Izzy Alessi), Janey Godley (Clare Tindall), Peter Forbes (Su-
perintendent Gavin Blair), Jack Tarlton (Fiscal John), Ciaran Alexan-
der Stewart (Gregg Davidson), Duncan Pow (Patrick), Carly Anderson
(Marie Monroe), Neve McIntosh (Julie Hedges), Phil McKee (Jimmy
Levin), David Monteath ((voice)), Ciaran Quinn (Office Worker), John
Smeathers (Funeral Vicar), Ian Stewart (Crime Scene Investigator)

Summary: While Kathy oversees the excavation of Marie’s grave, Daniel gives
McKinven the lead he needs to make an arrest. But it’s the exact-
ing forensic science that finally brings peace for Emma.

At the beginning of the episode, Emma
Hedges searches for information about
the new investigation into Marie Mon-
roe’s death. Daniel goes to SIFA in hopes
of getting in touch with Emma but she
isn’t there. Instead, he speaks with Ja-
nine and Sarah. When Daniel leaves, Ja-
nine and Sarah admit they liked Daniel.
Emma watches Neil speak to the media
about Marie’s case. He says the case is

progressing. He is hopeful that they’ll be in a position to bring the culprit to justice. Moments
later, Sarah tells Louise police are ready to conduct a raid connected to the drugs.

daniel traces finale
Daniel goes to his mother’s place and they scour through paperwork regarding the Secrets

nightclub. His mom admits she is curious about where Philip was on the night in question. She
suspects Philip would’ve been with another woman. The find paperwork regarding Tempo Tyres
and bollard post materials. Tempo Tyres is what Secrets used to be. Daniel returns to his office
with the evidence and realizes the wrong materials were used for the Secrets job. Kathy shows
Neil through the dig site. Pia has found a false floor so they believe the grave will be underneath
it. Next, Daniel confronts his father about the Secrets evidence.

molly windsor traces finale
Philip tells his son that he does not want to go against him. Daniel doesn’t seem intimated

by his father. Louise and Sarah search the drug lab. They wish Emma was there to see it. Kathy
and Pia begin pulling bones from the dirt. Then, Kathy stumbles upon a footprint in the dirt.
A cast is taken of the print. Then, they discover the hyoid bone. Emma gets a call from Skype
who explains that her mother is in trouble and wants to speak with them. They meet Izzy a few
moments later. Izzy tells them that Marie knew Philip. Izzy was sleeping with Philip. Izzy says she
got on heroin and lost Skye for a little while.
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actor martin compston traces
Everyone stopped hanging out with Izzy so she never told anyone that Phil knew who killed

Marie Monroe. She tells them that Phil told everyone to stop hanging out and destroy the phones
when the police started snooping around about Marie. Emma goes to Drew to find out if he kept
his phone. Drew denies knowing anything about it before pretending he doesn’t have it. Emma
suspects it might be in his suitcase. She eventually attacks her father, searches the suitcase,
and finds the phone. Drew takes the phone to Neil seconds later. Neil’s girlfriend is having a baby
and he wants to be there.

drew traces s01e06
Drew is not sure what type of relationship Phil and Marie had. He kept the phone because

he doesn’t like being told what to do. He also thought Phil was visiting his wife. Emma spots
Phil and begins following him. She goes into the restaurant and confronts him about killing her
mother but Phil denies everything. Daniel gets a visit from his attorney. He gives her the invoices
for the materials they used at Secrets and the fake on his dad had made. Pia and Kathy put
together Marie’s bones. Neil learns that a saw was used to cut the bones but a knife was used on
the flesh. The hyoid bone was broken so she was likely strangled before she died.

sarah janine traces
Emma gets a call from Sarah who asks to meet. Sarah says she is getting her own lab thanks

to the drug raid bust. She gives Emma credit for everything. Neil’s boss is not confident they
have enough evidence against Phil. Then, Emma meets up with Daniel and they go for a walk. He
wants to know what Emma thinks his father did but she is worried that she cannot trust him.
Daniel learns about everyone hanging out together and Phil having an affair with Izzy. Phil told
Izzy he was with Daniel’s mom but he wasn’t. Neil and Sarah chat about the lack of evidence.
Neil receives a call from Daniel about the work on Secrets when it was a tire place.

trina neil traces finale
The invoice was from two days after Marie’s death. Daniel agrees to put this down in a state-

ment for him. The sign outside of the Secrets nightclub is dug up and boots are found under-
neath. A blood spot is found on the boot. Phil is arrested by Neil and Trina seconds later before
being taken back to an interview room. Phil denies everything and says nothing but we see oth-
erwise in flashbacks. They also play a voicemail message of Marie asking to meet someone. Phil
is shown all of the evidence and asked about the pink dress. After that, Emma gets a call from
Neil. Daniel is with her and they learn about Phil being charged for the murder.

pia traces s01e06
Emma comforts Daniel while Neil thanks the women for the excellent forensic evidence. Neil

speaks with Sarah alone. Then, we see a flashback of a young Emma with her mother. The funeral
takes place. Daniel doesn’t attend since he is not sure how the others would feel. However, he
does show up in the distance. They hug and kiss as the episode ends.
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Episode 1

Season 2
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Saturday January 15, 2022
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Chris Foggin
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil
McKinven), Martin Compston (Daniel MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil
MacAfee), Laila Rouass (Azra McKinven), Stella Gonet (Aileen MacAfee),
Badria Timimi (Dean Jean Bruzzi)

Guest Stars: Patrice Naiambana (Father Nkusi), Gordon Kennedy (Chief Consta-
ble), Rohit Kumar (DS Safi Khurana), Pamela Byrne (Ruth Tinto), An-
drea Hart (Janine Muir), John Mackay (Joseph Mann), Carly Anderson
(Marie Monroe), Simon McCallum (Security Guard), Jack Tarlton (Fis-
cal John), Peter Forbes (Superintendent Gavin Blair), Krysten Peck
(Erika), Robert McCafferty (Bar Officer), John Bett (Judge), Douglas
Rankine (Keith Farr QC), Philip Gascoyne (Defence Solicitor), Nikki
Marshall (Detective), Alicia McGuire (Cop)

Summary: Whilst Emma and Daniel prepare for the murder trial of his father,
McKinven and Sarah are back together when a church hall is bombed,
rocking Dundee.

Whilst Emma and Daniel prepare for the
murder trial of his father, McKinven and
Sarah are back together when a church
hall is bombed, rocking Dundee.
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Episode 2

Season 2
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Saturday January 22, 2022
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Chris Foggin
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil
McKinven), Martin Compston (Daniel MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil
MacAfee), Laila Rouass (Azra McKinven), Stella Gonet (Aileen MacAfee),
Badria Timimi (Dean Jean Bruzzi)

Guest Stars: Robert McCafferty (Bar Officer), Douglas Rankine (Keith Farr QC),
John Mackay (Joseph Mann), John Bett (Judge), Carly Anderson
(Marie Monroe), Rohit Kumar (DS Safi Khurana), Krysten Peck (Erika),
Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), Anna Leong Brophy (Louise Chiu Jones),
Peter Forbes (Superintendent Gavin Blair)

Summary: The second bomb destroys a Vietnamese nail bar, killing two people.
Now the pressure is really on, as Super Gav wants McKinven to find
out what’s motivating the person behind the attacks.

The second bomb destroys a Vietnamese
nail bar, killing two people. Now the pres-
sure is really on, as Super Gav wants
McKinven to find out what’s motivating
the person behind the attacks.
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Episode 3

Season 2
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Tuesday March 01, 2022
Writer: Jess Williams
Director: Chris Foggin
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil
McKinven), Martin Compston (Daniel MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil
MacAfee), Laila Rouass (Azra McKinven), Stella Gonet (Aileen MacAfee),
Badria Timimi (Dean Jean Bruzzi)

Guest Stars: Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), Anna Leong Brophy (Louise Chiu Jones),
Peter Forbes (Superintendent Gavin Blair), Krysten Peck (Erika), Ro-
hit Kumar (DS Safi Khurana), Andrew Rothney (Sam), Paul McCole
(Campbell), Tom Mannion (DCS Tom), Julie Cullen (Holly), Kenny
Fullwood (Rory Callanach), Leah MacRae (Charlie), Lila Geary (Kitty),
Reuben Joseph (John), Richard Clements (Finn McGuinness), Siu Hun
Li (Bar Guy), Duncan Duff (Anthony Gemmell), Maggie MacRitchie (Va-
lerie Gemmell)

Summary: The task facing McKinven is ever more daunting, especially now that
his wife Azra is joining the investigation. Meanwhile, Kathy’s PhD stu-
dent sees more than she should. . .

The task facing McKinven is ever more
daunting, especially now that his wife
Azra is joining the investigation. Mean-
while, Kathy’s PhD student sees more
than she should. . .
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Episode 4

Season 2
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Tuesday March 08, 2022
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Claire Winyard
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil
McKinven), Martin Compston (Daniel MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil
MacAfee), Laila Rouass (Azra McKinven), Stella Gonet (Aileen MacAfee),
Badria Timimi (Dean Jean Bruzzi)

Guest Stars: Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), Anna Leong Brophy (Louise Chiu Jones),
Peter Forbes (Superintendent Gavin Blair), Krysten Peck (Erika), Ro-
hit Kumar (DS Safi Khurana), Andrew Rothney (Sam), Paul McCole
(Campbell), Tom Mannion (DCS Tom), Julie Cullen (Holly), Kenny
Fullwood (Rory Callanach), Leah MacRae (Charlie), Lila Geary (Kitty),
Reuben Joseph (John), Richard Clements (Finn McGuinness), Siu Hun
Li (Bar Guy), Duncan Duff (Anthony Gemmell), Maggie MacRitchie (Va-
lerie Gemmell)

Summary: Two suspects derail the investigation as McKinven and Sarah are con-
sumed by their feelings. Kathy’s inability to communicate becomes a
serious problem.

Two suspects derail the investigation as
McKinven and Sarah are consumed by
their feelings. Kathy’s inability to commu-
nicate becomes a serious problem.
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Episode 5

Season 2
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Tuesday March 15, 2022
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director: Claire Winyard
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil
McKinven), Martin Compston (Daniel MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil
MacAfee), Laila Rouass (Azra McKinven), Stella Gonet (Aileen MacAfee),
Badria Timimi (Dean Jean Bruzzi)

Guest Stars: Andrea Hart (Janine Muir), Peter Forbes (Superintendent Gavin Blair),
Jack Tarlton (Fiscal John), Krysten Peck (Erika), Rohit Kumar (DS
Safi Khurana), Andrew Rothney (Sam), Tom Mannion (DCS Tom),
Julie Cullen (Holly), Richard Clements (Finn McGuinness), Reuben
Joseph (John), Sean Connor (Jack), Peter Bramhill (Tim Hossack),
Jack Hunter (Matt), Mark Lomond (Euan McMillan), Alyth Ross (Fe-
male Shop Assistant)

Summary: Another deadly explosion. Sarah and McKinven’s growing attachment
has fraught consequences, as Kathy suspects Jean the Dean of having
a secret to hide.

Another deadly explosion. Sarah and
McKinven’s growing attachment has
fraught consequences, as Kathy suspects
Jean the Dean of having a secret to hide.
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Episode 6

Season 2
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Tuesday March 22, 2022
Writer: Amelia Bullmore
Director:
Show Stars: Molly Windsor (Emma Hedges), Laura Fraser (Prof. Sarah Gordon),

Jennifer Spence (Prof. Kathy Torrance), Michael Nardone (DI Neil
McKinven), Martin Compston (Daniel MacAfee), Vincent Regan (Phil
MacAfee), Laila Rouass (Azra McKinven), Stella Gonet (Aileen MacAfee),
Badria Timimi (Dean Jean Bruzzi)

Guest Stars: Russ Bain (Martin), Jean-Pascal Heynemand (Detective), Rohit Kumar
(DS Safi Khurana), Krysten Peck (Erika), Jack Tarlton (Fiscal John),
Stuart D. Latham (Passer by), Haroon Rafiq (Market Shopper)

Summary: Sarah works with McKinven to prevent another explosion before mak-
ing decisions about their future. Kathy realises change is essential,
personally and professionally.

Sarah works with McKinven to prevent
another explosion before making deci-
sions about their future. Kathy realises
change is essential, personally and pro-
fessionally.
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Actor Appearances

A
Oluseun Adeyemi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Passerby)
Morayo Akandé. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .6

0101 (DC Trina Adebayo); 0102 (DC Trina Ade-
bayo); 0103 (DC Trina Adebayo); 0104 (DC
Trina Adebayo); 0105 (DC Trina Adebayo); 0106
(DC Trina Adebayo)

Carly Anderson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .8
0101 (Marie Monroe); 0102 (Marie Monroe); 0103

(Marie Monroe); 0104 (Marie Monroe); 0105
(Marie Monroe); 0106 (Marie Monroe); 0201
(Marie Monroe); 0202 (Marie Monroe)

B
Russ Bain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0206 (Martin)
John Bett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0201 (Judge); 0202 (Judge)
Joana Borja . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0102 (Pia Salvador); 0103 (Pia Salvador); 0104 (Pia
Salvador); 0105 (Pia Salvador); 0106 (Pia Sal-
vador)

Peter Bramhill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0205 (Tim Hossack)

Laurie Brett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
0101 (Izzy Alessi); 0102 (Izzy Alessi); 0103 (Izzy

Alessi); 0104 (Izzy Alessi); 0105 (Izzy Alessi);
0106 (Izzy Alessi)

Anna Leong Brophy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
0101 (Louise Chiu Jones); 0102 (Louise Chiu Jones);

0103 (Louise Chiu Jones); 0104 (Louise Chiu
Jones); 0105 (Louise Chiu Jones); 0106 (Louise
Chiu Jones); 0202 (Louise Chiu Jones); 0203
(Louise Chiu Jones); 0204 (Louise Chiu Jones)

Kieran Brown.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Barman)

Pamela Byrne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0201 (Ruth Tinto)

C
Richard Clements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0203 (Finn McGuinness); 0204 (Finn McGuinness);
0205 (Finn McGuinness)

John Clyde . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Shuggie Brook)

Sean Connor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0205 (Jack)

Julie Cullen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
0203 (Holly); 0204 (Holly); 0205 (Holly)

D
Rob Day . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Howie)
Duncan Duff . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0203 (Anthony Gemmell); 0204 (Anthony Gemmell)

E
Lynn Edmonstone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Clerk)

F
Peter Forbes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

0103 (Superintendent Gavin Blair); 0104 (Super-
intendent Gavin Blair); 0105 (Superintendent
Gavin Blair); 0106 (Superintendent Gavin Blair);
0201 (Superintendent Gavin Blair); 0202 (Su-
perintendent Gavin Blair); 0203 (Superinten-
dent Gavin Blair); 0204 (Superintendent Gavin
Blair); 0205 (Superintendent Gavin Blair)

Kenny Fullwood . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0203 (Rory Callanach); 0204 (Rory Callanach)

G
Philip Gascoyne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0201 (Defence Solicitor)
Lila Geary. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0203 (Kitty); 0204 (Kitty)
Janey Godley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0104 (Clare Tindall); 0106 (Clare Tindall)
Stella Gonet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0105 (Aileen MacAfee); 0106 (Aileen MacAfee)
Frances Grey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0102 (DCI Catherine Attwood); 0103 (DCI Cather-
ine Attwood)

H
Richard Hansell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Steven)
Andrea Hart. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .11

0101 (Janine Muir); 0102 (Janine Muir); 0103 (Ja-
nine Muir); 0104 (Janine Muir); 0105 (Janine
Muir); 0106 (Janine Muir); 0201 (Janine Muir);
0202 (Janine Muir); 0203 (Janine Muir); 0204
(Janine Muir); 0205 (Janine Muir)

Jean-Pascal Heynemand .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0206 (Detective)

Jack Hunter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0205 (Matt)

J
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